
 

                                                               
                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PZHAC WORKSHOP & MEETING 
AGENDA 

NOVEMBER 2, 2020  
 
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A WORK SESSION VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2020 AT 2:30 P.M. TO JOIN 
THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 
193857. 
 
ITEM 1.   Submitted by Jessie L. Herrera; a request to discuss plans to construct an addition to a dwelling at 2929 Calle 

de Guadalupe. (Permit 061132). Zoned: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
 
ITEM 2.  Submitted by Father Cristopher Williams for the Basilica of San Albino; a request to discuss plans for the 

construction of a columbarium on a property owned by the Diocese of Las Cruces behind the church store 2280 
Calle Principal. (Case 061138) Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  

 
ITEM 3. Submitted by Oscar and Mary Ann Luevano; a request to discuss plans to operate a wedding chapel as a home 

occupation on a residential property at 1395 Snow Road. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2020 AT 3:00 P.M. TO 
JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 
193857. 
  
I.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  
 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one motion 
unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 
 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Workshop and Meeting of October 5, 2020. 
B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

Zoning Permit: 
1. Case 061137 – 2928 La Mesilla Circle, submitted by Rebecca Segovia; a request for a building permit to add 

railroad ties to the front landscaping of the dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  
 

   V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A.  PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES  

Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be read 
into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting by 
phone and pressing *9 while in the teleconference. This will let the host know that you wish to speak. You 
will be prompted by the host or the Commission Chair when to begin speaking.  
 
 
 

mailto:larrys@mesillanm.gov


 

B.  DECISIONS:  
Zoning Permits: 
1. Case 061132 – 2929 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Jessie L. Herrera; a request for a zoning permit to 

allow an addition to a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential Agricultural (RA) (This request was 
discussed during the Work Session) 

2. Case 061134 – 3116 Highway 28, submitted by Norm Fristoe for Lama Properties, LLC; a request for a 
zoning permit to allow the completion of a wall around a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential 
Agricultural (RA) 

3. Case 061138 – 2280 Calle Principal, submitted by Father Cristopher Williams for the Basilica of San Albino; 
a request for a zoning permit to allow the construction of a columbarium on a property owned by the Diocese 
of Las Cruces behind the church store. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) (This request was discussed during 
the Work Session) 

 
Business Permit: 
5. 1395 Snow Road, submitted by Oscar and Mary Ann Luevano; PZHAC review of a request for a Business 

License to operate a wedding chapel as a home occupation on a residential property at 1395 Snow Road. Zoned: 
Rural Farm (RF) (This request was discussed during the Work Session) 

 
 

VI. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS  
    
VII. ADJOURNMENT    

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 10/29/20 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public 
Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; 
Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida de Mesilla 
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

  



PZHAC WORK SESSION 
NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

ITEM 1 
 
 
Submitted by Jessie L. Herrera; a request to discuss plans to construct an addition to a dwelling at 2929 Calle de 
Guadalupe. (Permit 061020). Zoned: Residential Agricultural (RA) 

 
The subject property is on the east side of Calle de Guadalupe at the north edge of the RA zone. The neighboring 
property to the north is zoned HR. at the northwest corner of the Town in the RF zone. The existing dwelling 
currently sits on a 4356 square foot parcel that also contains a large storage building at the rear of the property. 
According to the applicant, this storage building will be just over ten feet from the proposed addition. 

 
(The RA zoning of the property requires a lot size of three acres for lots in the RA zone. Since the property 
is only 4356 square feet in size, the property is a legal non-conforming lot, and the existing dwelling has 
been determined to be a legal non-conforming use of the property which may not be expanded, according 
to a recent PZHAC policy resulting from a legal opinion dated August 14, 2020 - see attached.) 

 
The addition will be about 1600 square feet in size on two levels and will almost triple the approximately 960 
square foot size of the existing dwelling. The addition will contain a kitchen; two bedrooms and a laundry room 
on the first floor, and a master bedroom with a bathroom and a walk-in closet; and a porch. The existing kitchen 
will be turned into a dining room. The total number of bedrooms in the dwelling will be increased from two to 
five. The addition will not change the use of the dwelling as a single-family dwelling. There will be adequate off-
street parking for the modified dwelling. 

 
The existing dwelling has a pitched asphalt roof with a total height of about twelve feet. The addition will also 
have a pitched asphalt roof with a height of about twenty-two feet. The twenty-two foot height is similar to the 
height of other structures along this stretch of Calle de Guadalupe in the RA zone. (The maximum height allowed 
in the RA zone is thirty feet.) Since the property is not in a Historic zone, the Historic Preservation section of the 
Code (18.33), and therefore development zones, do not apply to this property. The existing structure has a brick 
veneer finish (see attached photos). The addition will have a stucco finish. The brick veneer will eventually be 
stuccoed to match the addition, according to the applicant. 

 
The rear setback for the property is thirty feet. According to the applicant, the addition will just about fit this 
setback. (One corner of the addition appears to be 6 inches shy of meeting the required setback according to the 
site plan provided by the applicant.) The addition will meet all other required setbacks. 

 
The applicant or his representative will be present by “Zoom” at the work session to provide further details about 
the proposed construction, and to answer any questions that may arise. 





PHOTO OF THE DWELLING FROM CALLE DE GUADALUPE 

 

PHOTO OF THE DWELLING FROM CALLE DE GUADALUPE SHOWING SHED 

 
  



PHOTO OF THE DWELLING FROM CALLE DE GUADALUPE 

 
 

PHOTO OF THE DWELLING FROM CALLE DE GUADALUPE SHOWING SHED 

 
 

 
 



















PZHAC WORK SESSION 
NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

ITEM 2 
 
 
Submitted by Father Cristopher Williams for the Basilica of San Albino; a request to discuss plans for the 
construction of a columbarium on a property owned by the Diocese of Las Cruces behind the church store 2280 
Calle Principal. (Case 061138) Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
 
The subject property is owned by the Diocese of Las Cruces and contains the San Albino Catholic Gift Shop, with 
a Grotto to the Mother Mary located in a patio area at the rear of the store. The proposed columbarium will be 
located on a vacant piece of the property to the west of the patio area (see attached site plan).  Access to the 
columbarium will be by a gate from the patio area, and by a walkway that will run between the north edge of the 
columbarium and the church parking lot adjacent to the subject property. The plans for the columbarium, provided 
by Father Willliams, are attached.    
 
Until recently, a columbarium was not allowed in the Historic Commercial (HC) zone unless it was part of a 
cemetery that was allowed by a Special Use Permit (MTC 18.55.010.) This prohibition was removed from the 
Code by Ordinance 2020-05 approved by the BOT in September of this year amending the Zoning Code. The 
following is the ordinance as it was written: 
 
Chapter 18.55  UNCLASSIFIED AND SPECIAL USES 

18.55.010 Land uses. 
     D. The uses are as follows: 

5. Columbariums, crematories, and mausoleums unless inside a cemetery, are excluded from H-R and 
H-C zones. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine whether or not a Special Use Permit is needed for the columbarium, or if the 
columbarium can be allowed as a part of the existing Parish use of the property and allowed by a Zoning Permit 
issued by the Town and a Building Permit issued by CID.  (This is because of the fact that once the limitation on 
columbariums was removed from the Code, there is no mention in the Code of requirements for a columbarium.) 
  
The subject property is on the east side of Calle de Guadalupe at the north edge of the RA zone. The neighboring 
property to the north is zoned HR. at the northwest corner of the Town in the RF zone. The existing dwelling 
currently sits on a 4356 square foot parcel that also contains a large storage building at the rear of the property. 
According to the applicant, this storage building will be just over ten feet from the proposed addition. 

 
The applicant or a representative will be present by “Zoom” at the work session to provide further details about 
the proposed columbarium, and to answer any questions that may arise. 
 

  





PHOTOS OF THE PROPERTY FROM CALLE PRINCIPAL 

 
 

 
 



PHOTOS OF THE REAR OF THE PROPERTY FROM THE CHURCH PARKING LOT 

 
 

 
  













PZHAC WORK SESSION 
NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

ITEM 3 
 
 
Submitted by Oscar and Mary Ann Luevano; a request to discuss plans to operate a wedding chapel as a home 
occupation on a residential property at 1395 Snow Road. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
 
The applicants live on the property. The property consists of a 5.31 acre parcel with a dwelling, a casita, two horse 
barns, and several smaller out-buildings, along with three portions of the property along the northeastern edge 
that were originally used for horse corrals. The applicants would like to convert the barns to marriage chapels and 
use the corral areas for parking for up to forty guests. Weddings would be performed on the property in the chapel 
areas, and a reception would follow the weddings, with food to be provided by the wedding party or guests, 
according to the applicants. (The applicants were told by staff that providing professional catering services to the 
guests could cause the proposed  operation to be more commercial in nature, which would not fit in with the rural 
nature of the RF zone.) 
 
The applicants have provided a completed Home Occupation Checklist (attached), and have been informed that 
the parking would need to meet parking requirements for up to forty people, with at least two handicapped parking 
spaces and proper access. Also, zoning and building permits will be needed for the parking areas and any 
alterations that will be needed to any of the structures on the property, including the possible need to provide 
restroom facilities. 
 
The applicants were also informed that hours of operation, along with noise and alcohol service will need to be 
addressed.  If the operation is or takes on the appearance of being a commercial operation, or the requirements 
for a home occupation cannot be met, the operation it will not be allowed by the RF zoning of the property.  Small, 
quiet wedding services on the property, without the reception, might be allowed if there is no impact to the 
surround area due to traffic, noise, or sound; providing that these meet all the requirements for a home occupation 
(attached) and there is little or no evidence that this is a commercial operation. (Although commercial operations 
are not allowed by Section 18.20.040 Rural Farm -RF, Uses Prohibited of the Code, small wedding chapels that 
due not appear commercial are neither permitted nor expressly prohibited by the Code.) 
  
The applicants would like to present their proposal to the PZHAC and get an official determination as to whether 
or not their proposal for the property will be allowed, and  what conditions they might need to meet. They have 
already met with staff and have been informed of most of the issues they will need to address, depending on what 
they are allowed to do.  
 
The applicants will be present by “Zoom” at the work session to provide further details about the proposed 
wedding chapel, and to answer any questions that may arise. 
 

 
 

  



HOME OCCUPATION REQUIREMENTS 

18.52.030 General conditions. 

Home occupations are permitted uses in the RF, RA, R-1, H-R and H-C zones provided the following conditions are 
met: 

A. Only immediate family members occupying the dwelling shall be engaged in the home occupation. 

B. Only two occupations shall be permitted at a time. 

C. All activities shall be conducted indoors. 

D. Except for a sign as permitted in subsection (F) of this section, items shall not be displayed on the outside of the 
dwelling or on the premises of the home occupation and there shall be no change in the outside appearance of the 
dwelling or the premises. 

E. Only products of the home occupation may be sold from the premises providing the following conditions are met: 

1. Any activity at the residence related to the home occupation is by appointment only and there shall be no 
more than one client visitation at the home occupation at any given time except for instructional services; 

2. All parking associated with the home occupation is off-street; 

3. A site plan of the lot shall be submitted with a business registration application to the PZHAC for approval. The 
site plan shall indicate the location of all structures and parking for the maximum number of vehicles that shall be 
present on the lot at any one time during the hours of operation of the home occupation, to include the vehicles 
owned and operated by the residents of the dwelling. The size of the parking spaces shall comply with 
MTC 18.60.170, required off-street parking; and 

4. A checklist, which appears at the end of this chapter as Appendix A, shall also be submitted with the business 
registration application to the PZHAC. 

F. One unlighted sign have a maximum area of one by three square feet and identifying the occupant(s) and home 
occupation(s) shall be permitted. 

G. There shall be no external evidence of the activity such as commercial vehicles, outside storage of products or 
materials and there shall be no change in the outside appearance of the building or premises or other visible evidence 
of the conduct of a home occupation, unless specifically permitted pursuant to conditions of a special use permit. 

H. Storage in connection with any home occupation shall be totally enclosed and there shall be no open storage of 
business related equipment or supplies with the exception of one company owned vehicle, three-quarter-ton truck or 
smaller, which is also used for personal transportation purposes. 

I. No equipment or process shall be used in a home occupation that creates dust, noise, vibration, glare, fumes, odors 
or other nuisances to other neighboring properties. 

J. There shall be no toxic, explosive, highly flammable or other restricted materials used or stored on the premises of a 
home occupation beyond the amount normally kept at a residential dwelling or on hand to operate or maintain 
equipment permitted by the Uniform Fire Code as adopted by the town of Mesilla. 

K. No equipment shall be used in a home occupation which creates electrical interference detectable in adjacent areas 
or visual or audible interference for any radio or television receivers on and near the premises, which exceeds that 
normally found in a residential area. 

L. All home occupations shall be required to obtain a business registration from the town clerk’s office. Conditions may 
be attached during the approval process. Business registrations are renewable annually by the fifteenth day of March 

https://www.codepublishing.com/NM/Mesilla/#!/Mesilla18/Mesilla1860.html#18.60.170


upon submission and approval of an application and payment of a $35.00 fee. Cross-reference: Chapter 5.05 MTC, 
Business Registration. [Ord. 2012-07; Ord. 2003-06 § 5; prior code § 7-10-3] 

 

18.52.040 Permitted and prohibited home occupations. 

A. Permitted Uses. 

1. Professional Office Businesses. Professional office businesses may include an office for accounting, 
bookkeeping, tax preparation, office management, appraisal, architectural, real estate and other similar 
businesses. 

2. Professional Service Related Businesses. Professional service related businesses may include computer 
programming and other computer related services, direct distribution (for example, Amway, Avon, Tupperware), 
mail order, maid service, ironing, telephone/fax answering, word processing and other similar service uses. 

3. Instructional Services Businesses. Instructional services may include educational tutoring, music lessons and 
similar instructional services. A maximum of five students may be at the dwelling at any one time. No musical 
instruments may be amplified. 

4. Small Home Artisan Businesses. A small home artisan business may include painting and drawing studios; 
dress making, sewing and tailoring; engraving; leather work; jewelry making and hobby crafts. 

B. Uses Permitted with a Special Use Permit. 

1. Kennels and pet grooming. 

2. Automotive related repair, body work, and dealer licensing. 

3. Bicycle repair and servicing. 

4. Motorcycle repair and servicing. 

5. Appliance repair or servicing. 

 
C. Prohibited Home Occupations. 

1. Among those professional services that shall not be considered for home occupation status are attorneys, 
dentists, medical doctors and practitioners primarily involved with anatomical or alternative medicines. 

2. Among those professional services that shall not be considered for home occupation status are beauticians 
and barber shops, and massage parlors. 

3. Adult book stores, adult video stores, adult amusement businesses and the sale of obscene material as 
defined in Chapter 9.40 MTC are prohibited as home occupations. 

4. Other prohibited businesses include but are not limited to fortune telling, palm reading, tattoo parlors, body 
piercing services, and restaurants. [Ord. 2012-07; Ord. 2003-06 § 5; prior code § 7-10-4] 

https://www.codepublishing.com/NM/Mesilla/#!/Mesilla05/Mesilla0505.html#5.05
https://www.codepublishing.com/NM/Mesilla/#!/Mesilla09/Mesilla0940.html#9.40






PHOTOS OF THE PROPERTY FROM SNOW ROAD 

 
 

 
 



PHOTOS OF LOOKING DOWN SNOW ROAD FROM BOTH SIDES OF THE PROPERTY 
(LOOKING NORTH) 

 
 

(LOOKING SOUTH) 

 









 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC 

WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

OCTOBER 19, 2020 

 

 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

 

  



 

                                                               
                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PZHAC WORKSHOP & MEETING 
AGENDA 

OCTOBER 19, 2020  
 
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A WORK SESSION VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2020 AT 2:30 P.M. TO JOIN THE 
MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 193857. 
 
Item 1: Submitted by Jessie L. Herrera; a request to discuss plans to construct an addition to a dwelling at 2929 Calle de 
Guadalupe. (Permit 061132). Zoned: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
Neither the applicant nor a representative were present so the discussion was postponed to the next PZHAC meeting. 
 
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2020 AT 3:00 P.M. TO JOIN 
THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 
193857. 
  
I.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  
Commissioner Nevarez was absent. All other Commissioners were present. There was a quorum. 
 
Others in attendance by “Zoom” or by phone were: Larry Shannon (Mesilla Staff), Tom Maese (CID), and Susan 
Krueger, resident. The regular meeting was convened at 3:00 pm. 
 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Due to the fact that there was no discussion of the case during the Work Session, Case 061132 was removed from 
the agenda. A motion to approve the agenda as amended was made by Commissioner Salas, approved by 
Commissioner Prieto, and approved by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one motion 
unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 
There were no changes to the Consent Agenda. A motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by 
Commissioner Prieto, seconded by Commissioner Salas, and approved by a vote of 4 - 0. 
 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Workshop and Meeting of October 5, 2020. 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda             
 

B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 
Zoning Permit: 
1. Case 061130 – 2833 Erminda Street, submitted by Marsha B. Toomey; a request for a zoning permit to repair 

and repaint the stucco on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

2. Case 061131 – Along the northwest end of Calle del Oeste, submitted by Rod McGillivray for the Town of 
Mesilla; a request for a zoning permit to allow the Town to install a cattle fence between a Town easement 
and a property along this part of Calle del Oeste. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 



 

 
   V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 

A.  PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES  
Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be read 
into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting by 
phone and pressing *9 while in the teleconference. This will let the host know that you wish to speak. You 
will be prompted by the host or the Commission Chair when to begin speaking.  
None 
 

B.  DECISIONS:  
Zoning Permits: 
1. Case 061120 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Jesus Lucero; a request to modify a zoning permit to 

allow a gate to be installed in a section of previously approved fencing on a commercial property at this 
address. Historical Commercial (HC) 
The applicant was present by phone if any questions arose. Staff provided a brief review of this request, 
explaining that the applicant would like to replace a section of fence that had been approved between the 
subject property and the adjacent property to the south with a gate that would enable people to park on the 
adjacent property and have access to the subject property. There were no issues. A motion was made by 
Commissioner Salas and seconded by Commissioner Houston to recommend approval of the request to the 
BOT and the request was APPROVED by a vote of 3 – 0. (Commissioner recused himself from voting.) 
 

2. Case 061132 – 2929 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Jessie L. Herrera; a request for a zoning permit to 
allow an addition to a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
This case was removed from the agenda. 
 

3. Case 061133 – 1433 Snow Road, submitted by Les Mathers; a request for a zoning permit to install a photo-
voltaic array on a ground mounted stand for a dwelling at his address. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF)  
The applicant was present by phone if any questions arose. Staff provided a brief review of this request, 
explaining that the applicant would like to install an array of solar panels on a ground based stand in a 
pecan grove at the rear of the property near the dwelling, and that the array would be connected to the 
dwelling by an underground cable. There were no issues. A motion was made by Commissioner Prieto and 
seconded by Commissioner Salas to recommend approval of the request to the BOT and the request was 
APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 

4. Case 061134 – 3116 Highway 28, submitted by Norm Fristoe for Lama Properties, LLC; a request for a 
zoning permit to allow the completion of a wall around a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential 
Agricultural (RA) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that the applicant would like to finish work on a 
wall that had been started under a different permit that had been approved in 2018. Since the wall was 
higher than originally approved, and since the wall had not been inspected by CID for over six months, a 
new permit was required in order to meet CID requirements. Staff also explained that walls up to ten feet 
in height are allowed by the Zoning Code provided that the wall is a privacy wall around a court yard or 
room opening onto a porch, and the wall is not on a property line (perimeter wall). Tom Maese, Chief 
Building Inspector for CID also stated that the plan shows a patio to the rear of the dwelling that is not 
part of the plan for the wall, that there have been no inspections for over six months, that a new permit 
needs to be obtained from CID for the wall. There were no other issues. A motion was made by 
Commissioner Prieto and seconded by Commissioner Houston to postpone the request in order to allow 
the applicant to meet CID requirements for the wall. The PZHAC voted 4 – 0 to POSTPONE the request.  

 
Business Permit: 
5. Permit 0857 – 2309 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Gabriela Gaxiola-Reichel for “Le Boutique, LLC”;  a 

request for a business license to allow the applicant to operate a commercial retail operation at this location 
selling women’s clothing, purses, shoes, unique gifts and other small retail products.  Zoned: Historic 
Commercial (HC) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that the applicant would be operating a retail 
business selling various women’s boutique type items out of a building that border Calle de Santiago. The 
structure has historically been used for retail sales. There were no issues. A motion was made by 
Commissioner Prierto and seconded by Commissioner Salas to approve the request, and the request was 
APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0. 

mailto:larrys@mesillanm.gov


 

 
Sign Permits: 
6. Case 061112 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Roman Prieto for “Prieto Imports”; a request to 

modify an existing sign permit to install two wall signs instead of a hanging sign on a business at this address. 
Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
The applicant, Commissioner Prieto, was present by “Zoom” if any questions arose. Staff provided a brief 
review of this request, explaining that the applicant would like to install two wall signs on the structure. 
One sign would be installed on the north wall and an identical sign would be installed on the east wall. 
Staff explained that since the structure would contain two businesses, the MTC Sign Code limits the 
number of such signs for each business to one sign and a sign on a directory. Commissioner Prieto, 
speaking as applicant, stated that Paragraph A of Section 18.65.220 of the Code contracts Paragraph B of 
the same section in that Paragraph A states that allows “A total of two exterior signs may be allowed to 
each store or bona fide place of business.” There was no follow-up to this statement by the PZHAC. There 
were no other issues. A motion was made by Commissioner Houston and seconded by Commissioner Salas 
to recommend conditional approval of the request to the BOT, and the request was APPROVED by a vote 
of 4 – 0 with the following CONDITION: 
1. One sign fifteen square feet or less would be allowed on the east wall for each business in the building.  
 

7. Case 061135 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Joshua Prieto for “Merch de Mesilla”; a request for a 
sign permit to install two wall signs on a business at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
Commissioner Prieto, acting as representative for the applicant, was present by “Zoom” if any questions 
arose. Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that the case was similar to the previous case 
in that the same type of sign was being requested for the same building, which was being shared by the two 
applicants, and that the MTC Sign Code limits the number of such signs for each business to one sign and 
a sign on a directory. There were no other issues. A motion was made by Commissioner Salas and seconded 
by Commissioner Houston to recommend conditional approval of the request to the BOT, and the request 
was APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0 with the following CONDITION: 
1. One sign fifteen square feet or less would be allowed on the east wall for each business in the building.  
 

7. Case 061136 – 2309 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Gabriela Gaxiola-Reichel for “Le Boutique, LLC”; a 
request for a sign permit to allow a wall sign on a business at this address.  Zoned: Historic Commercial (HC) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that the applicant plans to use an existing sign 
hanger on the wall of the building that has been used routinely in the past by previous occupants of the 
building for similar signs. The PZHAC determined that there were no issues with the proposed request. A 
motion was made by Commissioner Salas to approve the request, seconded by Commissioner Houston, and 
approved by a vote of 4 – 0 

  
 VI. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS  

Commissioner Salas 
Stated that, “for the record”, the PZHAC needs to address “non-conforming lots” and that the BOT needs to make 
a decision and provide an interpretation as to the meaning of “non-conforming”. 
 
Commission Chair Lucero 
Stated that staff needs to move this issue (non-conforming lots) along with the BOT, and that the PZHAC is “doing 
its job” by sticking to the Codes. 
 
Commissioners Prieto and Houston agreed with both Commissioner Salas and Commission Chair Lucero 
 
There were no further comments. 

    
VII. ADJOURNMENT   
        The meeting was adjourned at 3:45 pm. 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

 

  



 ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061137 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA – 11/2/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061137 – 2928 La Mesilla Circle, submitted by Rebecca Segovia; a request for a building permit to 
add railroad ties to the front landscaping of the dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will add railroad ties to the front of her property to keep people from driving of over the front 
of her property. There will be no change to the appearance of the dwelling. There will not be any structural 
or other changes to the dwelling or any other parts of the property.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the proposed repair and repainting of the stucco will not affect or change the appearance of the 
property, according to the applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to 
heated/cooled areas of the structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) 
- Application for building permit, Administrative Approval) –“Applications that are minor repairs 
or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any other 
permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the Community Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM THE ACCESS EASEMENT TO THE PROPERTY  
 

  







 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

 

PZHAC DECISIONS 

ZONING PERMITS 

 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061132 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 11/2/20] 

 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 1) 
 
Item: 
Case 061132 – 2929 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Jessie L. Herrera; a request for a zoning permit to allow an addition 
to a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting. (Please refer to the information 
provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed addition to the dwelling is not an expansion of a legal non-conforming use and is 
acceptable to the Town as proposed; and meets all applicable codes, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request 
can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve 
the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed addition to the dwelling is an expansion of a legal non-conforming 
use or is not acceptable to the Town; or does not meet all applicable codes, and no other solution can be reached, then the 
PZHAC should either postpone the request further until the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set 
forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as 
listed. 
 
Estimated Cost: $150,000.00 
 
Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the addition to the dwelling will be consistent with other construction in the Town. 
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the Building 
and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of constructing an addition to an existing dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed addition is not an expansion of a legal non-conforming use. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed dwelling meets all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the zoning request 
2. Approve the zoning request with conditions. 
3. Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request. 
4. Reject the zoning request. 

PZHAC ACTION:  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMITS 061134 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 10/19/20] 

 
Items: 
Case 061134 – 3116 Highway 28, submitted by Norm Fristoe for Lama Properties, LLC; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
completion of a wall around a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential Agricultural (RA) 
 
This case was heard and postponed at the October 19, 2020 PZHAC meeting to enable the applicant to address issues with his 
CID building permit that were brought up with Tom Maese, Chief Building Inspector with CID. The applicant has been 
informed of these issues and has been put in touch with CID by staff. The issues did not have anything to due with the Zoning 
requirements of the Town. 
 
Description of Request: 
The subject property is 1.1 acre in size. The applicant obtained administrative approval to construct a wall around a portion of the 
dwelling at this address (see attached site diagram). The wall was to be a maximum of six feet in height. The applicant has since exceeded 
this height in the construction of the wall, which is not yet complete.  Since the wall no longer complies with what was originally 
approved, the applicant is requesting a zoning permit to be able to complete the wall as built. CID is requiring this review by the PZHAC 
to ensure that the changes to the wall still comply with the Zoning Code for the Town. 
 
The reason for the additional height, according to the applicant is to provide privacy for this portion of the dwelling; which consists of 
a den area with large windows, and a patio. This extra height is allowed by the Code when the wall “…surrounds a court-yard, patio, or 
open room and the height of the wall is to provide privacy…” (Section 18.60.340 – see below).  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $1,200.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine if the work being done is an expansion of a legal non-conforming use of the property, or if 
it is a is continuation of work that was approved prior to the change in August of the PZHAC’s policy toward legal non-
conforming uses.  
 
Additionally, the additional height of the wall appears to meet the following requirement of the Code 
18.60.340 Wall, fence, or hedge. 
H. A wall may exceed six feet if it is compatible with the development zone, as defined in the Guidelines and Criteria for Preservation 
and Development manual (YGUADO Plan), and is connected to the building where it surrounds a courtyard, patio, or open room and 
the height of the wall is to provide privacy and/or environmental protection. The wall shall not exceed the height of the corresponding 
building nor at any time exceed 10 feet. This criterion shall not be considered for a perimeter wall (property line fence). (This is not a 
perimeter wall.) [Ord. 2006-10 § 1; Ord. 2001-09 § 1; Ord. 94-06 § 1; Ord. 93-08; prior code § 11-2-5.34] 
  
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the Building and Zoning 
Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of adding additional height to a wall that is under construction and was approved at a lower height.   
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wall meets the Code. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the application as requested.     
2. Approve the application with conditions. 
3. Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request. 
4. Reject the application. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 





 
PHOTOS OF WALL 

 
 

  







 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061138 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 11/2/20 

 
(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 2) 

 
Item: 
2280 Calle Principal, submitted by Father Cristopher Williams for the Basilica of San Albino; a request for a zoning permit 
to allow the construction of a columbarium on a property owned by the Diocese of Las Cruces behind the church store. 
Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting. (Please refer to the information 
provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed columbarium is acceptable to the Town as proposed; and meets all applicable codes, or 
if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will 
be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed columbarium is not acceptable to the Town; requires a special use 
permit, or does not meet all applicable codes, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone 
the request further until the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the 
PZHAC should deny the request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed. 
 
Estimated Cost: $50,000.00 
 
Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the addition to the columbarium will be consistent with other construction in the 
Town. The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of constructing a columbarium on church property at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed columbarium does not need a special use permit.  
•  The PZHAC has determined that the proposed columbarium meets all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the zoning request 
2. Approve the zoning request with conditions. 
3. Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request. 
4. Reject the zoning request. 

PZHAC ACTION: 

  



 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

 

 

BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS   



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUSINESS REGISTRATION REQUEST 
[PZHAC REVIEW –1/2/2020] 

 
(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 3) 

 
Item: 
1395 Snow Road, submitted by Oscar and Mary Ann Luevano; PZHAC review of a request for a Business License to operate 
a wedding chapel as a home occupation on a residential property at 1395 Snow Road. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting. (Please refer to the information 
provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed wedding chapel is acceptable to the Town as proposed during the work session; and 
meets all applicable codes, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all 
requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings 
stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed wedding chapel is not acceptable to the Town; requires a special use 
permit and/or zoning permit and building permits, or does not meet all applicable codes, and no other solution can be 
reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until the applicant can return with a proposal that meets 
the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request based on the request not meeting any or all 
of the Findings as listed. 
 
Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wedding chapel will be consistent with other construction in the 
Town. The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of operating a wedding chapel on a residential property at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wedding chapel does not need a special use permit, zoning permit, or 

building permit.  
•  The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wedding chapel meets all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the zoning request 
2. Approve the zoning request with conditions. 
3. Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request. 
4. Reject the zoning request. 

PZHAC ACTION: 

 


	11.2.20 WORK SESSION-write up.pdf
	PZHAC WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 2, 2020
	(The RA zoning of the property requires a lot size of three acres for lots in the RA zone. Since the property is only 4356 square feet in size, the property is a legal non-conforming lot, and the existing dwelling has been determined to be a legal non...
	PHOTO OF THE DWELLING FROM CALLE DE GUADALUPE
	PZHAC WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 2, 2020
	PZHAC WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 2, 2020
	18.52.030 General conditions.
	18.52.040 Permitted and prohibited home occupations.





